

MILLOM is a modern market town, owing its rise to the development of the iron industry, with a station on the Furness railway, and is 273 miles from London, 30 south-east from Whitehaven, 13 south from Ravenglass, and 16 north by rail from Barrow-in-Furness, in the Western division of the county, Allerdale-above-Derwent

ward, Bootle union and petty sessional division, county court district of Whitehaven, rural deanery of Gosforth, archdeaconry of Furness and diocese of Carlisle. The "Local Government Act, 1858" (21 & 22 Vic. c. 98) was adopted by the town, 5th March, 1875, but under the provisions of the Act of 1894 (56 & 57 Vict. c. 73) the

KELLY 1906 MILLOM 2 of 7

208 MILLOM.

CUMBERLAND.

[KELLY'S

town is now governed by an Urban District Council of 16 members, and is divided into 4 wards. The town is well laid out, lighted with gas from works in Millom road, and has a good supply of water from works at Baystone Bank, Whicham, both works being the property of the Urban District Council. Under the provisions of the above-named Act, Millom Urban District has been formed into a civil parish.

The ecclesiastical parish of St. George was formed out of the old parish of Millom, March 4th, 1879. The church, erected during the period 1874-77, at a total cost of £13,465, is an edifice of native red sandstone with freestone dressings, in the Gothic style, and consists of chancel, nave of five bays, north aisle, north porch, and an eastern embattled tower with spire: there are 600 sittings. The register dates from the year 1877. The living is a vicarage, with Haverigg annexed, net yearly value £370, with residence, in the gift of five trustees, and held since 1903 by the Rev. Ivor Granville Farrar M.A. of Trinity College, Cambridge. St. Luke's church at HAVERIGG, erected in 1891, at a cost of £11,522, is a building of blue slate stone, with red sandstone dressings, in the Early English style, and consists of chancel, nave, north porch, and a bell gable with one bell: the church will seat 200. The foundation stone of a mission hall, in connection with St. George's was laid 28 September, 1896, by Archdeacon Sinclair, on a site given by the Earl of Londale. The Catholic church, in Queen street, dedicated to Our Lady and St. James, and erected in 1888, at a cost of £1,450, is an edifice of brick and stone with freestone dressings, in the Early English style, and has about 550 sittings. The Wesleyan church, also in Queen street, erected in 1875, at a cost of £2,865, is a substantial building of local stone, dressed with freestone, and will seat 800. The Bible Christian chapel, in Newton street, erected in 1871, at a cost of about £1,200, is a building of stone, seating about 400, and there is another at Haverigg, erected in 1873 at a cost of about £800, with 300 sittings. The Primitive Methodist chapel, in Holborn hill, erected in 1866, will seat 250, and that at Haverigg, erected in 1877, at a cost of about £1,200, seats 400. The Baptist chapel, in Crown street, erected in 1884, affords 320 sittings. The Welsh Calvinistic Methodists hold their services in the Temperance hall, Mainsgate road, which seats 500. The Salvation Army fortress, in Nelson street, is a structure of brick, erected in 1889, at a cost of £640, and will seat 600. The Spiritualists have a meeting house in Holborn hill. The Hodbarrow Mining Co. Limited, work an extensive deposit of hæmatite iron-ore, situated here, on the estuary of the river Duddon. The ore, which is of the richest quality, lies partly under the

foreshore of the estuary, and the company have constructed a sea wall and embankment, at a cost of upwards of £120,000, in order to exclude the sea from that portion of the shore under which the ore is lying; another embankment was completed in 1905 at a cost of £600,000. The company employ about 1,300 hands, and raise about half a million tons of ore annually. The works of this company, and the extensive iron works of the Millom and Askham Hæmatite Iron Co. Limited, employing about 600 hands, are the chief causes of the continued prosperity of the town. The Market Hall and Urban District Council offices, at the entrance to the town, erected in 1879, at a cost of £3,500, are of stone and include a tower with clock. The County Hall, Market square, seats about 600. The Central Hall, in Holborn hill, will seat about 600; Thomas W. Robinson, proprietor. The Co-operative Buildings, consisting of several shops and a large hall above, holding 800 people, were erected in 1888, at a cost of £5,253. The market day is on Saturday. The Free Public Library is a structure of brick, in the so-called "Queen Anne" style; it was originally built for a Working Men's Institute, but was purchased in 1891 by the late Local Board, at a cost of £1,800, and devoted to its present purpose; it has since been enlarged, and now consists of a capital reading room and lending library, and three art class rooms; the library contains about 8,000 volumes, and issues 30,000 volumes annually. The Millom Detachment of the 1st Volunteer Battalion (The King's Own) Royal Lancaster Regiment has a drill hall in Holborn hill; the hall is also used for public assemblies, and will hold about 400 people. The Volunteer Fire Brigade station is at the Market Hall. Leyfield House, pleasantly situated on an eminence overlooking the town and surrounding district, is the residence of Cedric Vaughan esq. J.P. Duddon Villa, on the west bank of the river Duddon, is now (1906) unoccupied. The area of the civil parish and Urban District is 1,458 acres of land and 8 of inland and 189 of tidal water, and 857 of foreshore; rateable value, £121,234; the population in 1891 was 8,895 and in 1901 was 10,426, and 8,698 in the ecclesiastical parish of St. George in 1901.

The population of the wards in 1901 was, Haverigg, 2,823; Holborn Hill, 1,831; Newtown North, 3,448; Newtown South, 2,324.

HAVERIGG is a village of considerable size, about one mile south-west of the town, and forms a ward within the Urban District of Millom.

Sextons: St. George, William Grafton; St. Luke, Isaac Thompson

OFFICIAL ESTABLISHMENTS, LOCAL INSTITUTIONS &c.

Post, M. O. & T. M. O., S. B. & A. & I. Office, Lapstone road (Sub-Office. Letters should Love S.O. Cumberland added).—Seth Slater, postmaster. Letters arrive at 5.55 a.m. & 3.34 p.m.; deliveries commence at 7 a.m. & 3.55 p.m.; dispatched at 8.55 & 11.20 a.m. & 3.30, 6.40 & 8 p.m. Telegrams are dispatched from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. On sundays there is no delivery, but letters are handed to callers over the counter from 8 to 10 a.m. Telegrams are also received during that time for transmission. Letters dispatched on sundays at 6.30 p.m.

Town Sub-Post & M. O. O., S. B. & A. & I. Offices:—

Haverigg, Main street.—Thomas J. C. Fox, sub-postmaster. Letters dispatched at 8.30 & 10.45 a.m. (parcels & letters at 4.45 p.m.) & 7.15 p.m.

Holborn Hill.—John Farrington, sub-postmaster. Letters dispatched 8.30 & 11 a.m. & 3 & 7 p.m.

Wall Letter Boxes.

Borwick Rails, cleared at 8 a.m. & 4.45 p.m.
 Finch street, 8.30 & 11 a.m. & 3 & 7 p.m.
 King street, cleared at 8.45 & 10.45 a.m. & 3, & 7.15 p.m.
 Station, 8.30 & 11 a.m. & 3 & 7 p.m.
 Steel green, cleared at 7.30 & 10.30 a.m. & 7 p.m.

COUNTY MAGISTRATES FOR BOOTLE PETTY SESSIONAL DIVISION.

Muncaster Lord, Muncaster castle, Ravenglass S.O. (lord lieut.), chairman
 Burratt William Isaac esq. Keppleway, Broughton-in-Furness S.O.

Bruckbank William esq. Garthlands, Kirksanton, Silecroft S.O.
 Ooward Thomas Halford esq. Court End, Silecroft S.O.
 Grice John esq. Kiskin, Bootle S.O.
 Grice Richard esq. Cross house, Bootle S.O.
 Gunson John esq. Oak bank, Ulpha, Broughton-in-Furness S.O.
 Irving Rev. Canon Jn. M.A. Vicarage, Millom Above S.O.
 Lewthwaite William esq. D.L. Broadgate, Broughton-in-Furness S.O.
 Myers Major Charles John, Dunningwell, The Green, Millom S.O.
 Postlethwaite John Benn esq. The Hall, Waberthwaite, Bootle S.O.
 Postlethwaite William esq. D.L. The Oaks, Thwaites, Millom, Carnforth S.O.
 Rea James Hall esq. Gate house, Eskdale S.O.
 Bitson John Henry Moore esq. Hinning ho. Bootle S.O.
 Vaughan Cedric esq. Leyfield house, Millom S.O.
 Walkor William Brocklebank esq. Kallet ho. Silecroft S.O.
 Watt Alexander esq. The Grove, Ravenglass
 Yarr William John esq. Lapstone road, Millom S.O.
 The Chairman for the time being of the Millom Urban District Council is an ex-officio magistrate
 Clerk to the Magistrates, J. Rowlands, Millom S.O.
 Petty Sessions are held at Millom on alternate Saturdays & at Bootle once every 28 days

The following places are included in the petty sessional division:—Ansthrwaite, Birkley Birkor, Bootle, Corner, Eskdale, Chapel Sucken, Eskdale, Millom Above, Millom Below, Muncaster, Thwaites, Ulpha Above, Alpha Below, Waberthwaite, Wasdale Head, Wickham, or Whichham & Whitbeck

MILLOM

URBAN DISTRICT COUNCIL.

Offices, Market square.

Meetings held every third wednesday in the month at 4 p.m.

Members.

Chairman, William Barratt			
Haverigg Ward.			
Retire April.		Retire April.	
James J. Cain.....	1907	John Atkinson	1908
William Waite	1907	William Watson.....	1909
Holborn Hill Ward.			
John Newton	1907	Samuel Coado.....	1908
Cedric Vaughan.....	1907	George Hill.....	1909
Newtown North Ward.			
William J. Rodgers ...	1907	David Lang.....	1908
James Waye	1907	Joseph Harris Skeate..	1909
Newtown South Ward.			
John Crowle	1907	William Barratt.....	1908
Thomas Rundle	1907	Henry J. Kirby	1909

Officials.

Clerk, William Thomas Lawrence, Market square
 Treasurer, Charles A. Oglethorpe, Lancaster Banking Co. Limited
 Medical Officer of Health, Percy Butler Stoney L.R.C.P. Edin., M.R.C.S. Eng. Holborn hill
 Surveyor & Sanitary Inspector, Charles Allen Haynes, Kingsland road
 Collector, James Edward Howarth, Bay view

PUBLIC ESTABLISHMENTS.

Central Hall, Holborn hill, Thomas W. Robinson, propr
 Co-operative Buildings Hall
 County Hall, Market square, G. Mudge, manager
 County Police Station, Station road, Thomas Hegg, inspector; one sergeant & five constables
 Haverigg Free Reading Room, Main street, Haverigg, Thomas Evans, caretaker
 Volunteer Fire Brigade, Market hall, William B. Miles, captain & 12 men

VOLUNTEERS.

1st Volunteer Battalion The King's Own (Royal Lancaster Regiment) (Milloom detachment), Drill hall, Holborn hill; Capt. C. G. Bradley; Color-Sergeant W. John Jones, drill instructor

PUBLIC OFFICERS.

Coroner for the Lordship of Milloom, Percy Butler Stoney L.R.C.P. Lond. Holborn hill; deputy, William Thomas Lawrence, Market square
 Medical Officer & Public Vaccinator, Milloom District, Bootle Union, Percy Butler Stoney L.R.C.P. Lond. Holborn hill
 Believing & Certifying Factory Surgeon, Vaccination Officer, Registrar of Births & Deaths & Collector to the Guardians for Bootle District, Henry Frankland Fox, Duke street

PLACES OF WORSHIP, with times of Services.

St. George's (communion at 8 a.m.), 10.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m.; wednesday, 7.30 p.m.; Rev. Ivor Granville Farrar M.A. vicar; Rev. Frank Pascoe & Rev. Watson Stratton, curates

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Anderson Wells, Bay view
 Atkinson John, The Mount, Holborn hill
 Beck William, 13 Cambridge street
 Bond Harry, 84 Lapstone road
 Barwick Joseph M. Butler street
 Bradley William, Bay view
 Butcher Thomas, 15 Horn hill
 Chesworth Rev. Stanley K. (Primitive Methodist), 32 Market street
 Cleasby John, 16 Horn hill
 Coad Samuel, Steel green
 Crooke Walter, Church gate
 Darvell Arthur, 18 Horn hill
 Date Jehu, 74 Lapstone road
 Davis Wm. Jas. 5 Cambridge street
 Dixon Mrs. Jabez, Holmea
 Dixon John, 16 Duke street
 Dodd Mrs. 19 Horn hill
 Dunn William Allison, 78 Lapstone rd

Edwards George, 9 Horn hill
 Fairclough James, Sea view
 Farrar Rev. Ivor Granville M.A. (vicar of St. George's), The Vicarage
 Forrest Mrs. Holborn hill
 Gendle Mrs. 4 Horn hill
 Graham John, Marsh house
 Griffin Edwin, Duke street
 Hartley Rev. Horatius (Wesleyan). Wesley villa, Salthouse road
 Howarth Mrs. 60 Lapstone road
 Hney John Monnetto M.B. Old Bank house
 Jackson Benjamin, 10 Horn hill
 Jackson Miss, Bay view
 Jackson William, 3 Cambridge street
 Johnson James, East view
 Johnson Joseph, 66 Lapstone road
 Johnson Robert, Steel green
 Kelly Rev. John (Cath.), Queen street

Key James Henry, Kimberley house, Salthouse road
 Lewis Rev. Isaac (Baptist), Finch villa, Salthouse road
 McGowan John, Fair view, Holborn hill
 Mills John, Longfield house
 Mitchell Richard Alfred, 7 Horn hill
 Newton James, 11 Horn hill
 Nicholson Joseph, 7 Cambridge road
 Ninnis Rev. John (Bible Christian), 12 Kingsland road
 Oglethorpe Chas. Alf. Lancaster ho
 Ormanby John, Bank ho. Bay view
 Owen Owen, Mainsgate road
 Park Lawrence, Cross house
 Peter Mrs. Steel Green house
 Piko Henry, 17 Horn hill
 Postlethwaite George, Highfield
 Rich Joseph, Steel green
 Rich William, Steel green

St. Luke's, Haverigg (served from St. George's); 10.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m.; holy communion, 8 a.m.
 Our Lady & St. James (Catholic), Rev. John Kelly, priest; 9 & 10.30 a.m. & 6 p.m.; week days, 8 a.m.
 Baptist, Rev. Isaac Lewis; 10.30 a.m. & 6 p.m.; wednesdays, 7.30 p.m.
 Bible Christian, Newton street, Rev. John Ninnis; 10.45 a.m. & 6 p.m.; wed. 7 p.m.; Haverigg, 10.45 a.m. & 6 p.m.; tuesdays, 7 p.m.
 Primitive Methodist, Holborn Hill (Dalton & Millom Circuit), 10.45 a.m. & 6 p.m.; tuesday, 7 p.m.
 Primitive Methodist, Haverigg (Dalton & Millom Circuit), 10.45 a.m. & 6 p.m.; wednesday, 7 p.m.
 Welsh Calvinistic Methodist, Rev. Parry Jones; 10.30 a.m. & 6 p.m.
 Wesleyan, Rev. Horatius Hartley; 10.30 a.m. & 6 p.m.; tuesdays, 7 p.m.
 Salvation Army, 11 a.m. & 2.30 & 6 p.m. & every week night at 7 p.m.
 Spiritualists, 6 p.m.

SCHOOLS.

Secondary School (The Institute), opened January 16th, 1905, for 200; average attendance, 105; James Sharp, master; Charles Riddel B.Sc. Miss Nora Myers B.A. Miss Margaret Millar & William Stephens, assistants
 Milloom Joint Education Committee of 9 members, for Milloom district, was formed 1903; William T. Lawrence, Market square, clerk; William Millar, Cambridge street, attendance officer

Public Elementary.

Holborn Hill (boys, girls & infants), erected in 1879, for 306 boys, 160 girls & 168 infants; average attendance, 250 boys, 150 girls & 180 infants; Richard A. Mitchell, master; Fred James, Richard Gilbert, George F. Spencer, Thomas H. Carter & W. John Tyack, assistant masters; Miss Isabella Sharp, mistress; Miss Eda Waye, assistant mistress; Miss Isabella Durham, infants' mistress & Miss Mary E. Chapel, assistant mist
 Lapstone Road (boys, girls & infants), built in 1890-91 for 300 boys, 401 girls & 385 infants; average attendance, 290 boys, 345 girls & 330 infants; Harry D. Shardlow, master; Arthur H. Darvell & Jos. E. Hicks, assistant masters; Miss Margaret Blako, mistress; Miss Margaret Stephens, Hannah Osborna & Annie Coward, assistant mistresses; Miss Margaret Atkinson, Miss Florence Atkinson & Miss Clara Peter, infants' mistresses
 Haverigg (mixed), built as a Church school in 1875; it will hold 247 children; a new school for boys was built in 1902; it will hold 240; average attendance, 140 boys, 140 girls & 180 infants; William Waite, master; Edward Ellerton Atkinson, assistant master; Miss B. B. Dixon, girls' mistress; Miss E. E. Benn, infants' mistress
 Catholic, Queen street (mixed), for 400 children; average attendance, 280; Miss F. Pollock, mistress; Miss C. Geary, assistant mistress

NEWSPAPERS.

Milloom News, William Atkinson, publisher; published saturday
 Milloom Weekly Gazette, Holborn hill (Percy Charles Dickinson, printer, proprietor & publisher); published friday, 4 p.m.
 Railway Station, John Morgan, station master

MILLOM

Richards Thos. Bell, 14 Duke street
 Bobins Mrs. 88 Newton street
 Rundle Thomas, 70 Lapstone road
 Sampson Mark, Hodbarrow
 Shardlow Harry D. Hazelwood, Holborn hill
 Smith Thomas, Bay view
 Stratton Rev. Watson (curate, St. Luke's), Parsonage, Haverigg

Stoney Percy Butler, Holborn hill
 Strike William, Steel green
 Tamblin John, Hodbarrow
 Tomlinson William, Horn hill
 Tyacka Mrs. 2 Horn hill
 Tyson Edward, 12 Horn hill
 Tysou William, 62 Lapstone road
 Vaughan Cedric J.P. Leyfield house

Vaughan George, Bay view
 Waite William, Halecote st. Haverigg
 Warwick Hugh Fleming M.B. Old Bank house, Holborn hill
 Weatherall John, Bessemer villas, Devonshire road
 Yarr William John J.P. Lapstone rd
 Young James, Rock ho. Hodbarrow

COMMERCIAL.

Early closing day, Wednesday 1 p.m.

Addison George, Ironworks P.H. Duddon street
 Anderson William, ship builder, Duddon wharf
 Andrews John Thomas, draper, 33 Albert street
 Armstrong James, shopkeeper, 18 Newton street
 Arnold James, fried fish shop, 40 Queen street
 Ashburner Robert William, solicitor (attends every Tuesday), 50 Lapstone road
 Askew John, butcher, 170 Holborn hill
 Atkinson Ann (Mrs.), butcher, 44 Newton street
 Atkinson John, farmer, Whitriggs
 Atkinson William, printer, stationer & bookbinder; office of the Millom News, Market square
 Bamber Elizabeth Ann (Miss), milliner, 32 Wellington st
 Bank of Liverpool Limited (Wakefield Crowdsen & Co.'s Branch); open 9 a.m. to 3 p.m.; Saturday 9 a.m. to 1 p.m.; cattle market days, 9 a.m. to 4 p.m. (John Ormandy, manager), St. George's road; draw on Roberts, Lubbock & Co. Lombard street, London E.C.
 Bailiff Richard, shopkeeper, Crown street
 Barnes Alice (Mrs.), Peel hotel, Bedford street
 Beasley & Co. hatters & hosiers, 21 Newton street
 Bell Mary Ann (Mrs.), Temperance hotel, Cambridge st
 Bell William, farmer, Beck farm
 Benn I. & Son, drapers & clothiers, Wellington street
 Bennett Henry, greengrocer, Holborn hill
 Bennett James, draper, Main street, Haverigg
 Bennett John Thomas, hair dresser, 17 St. George ter
 Birbeck Abraham, joiner, Holborn hill
 Blair Isaac, farmer, Haverigg
 Bloomfield Arnold W. builder, 54 Lapstone road
 Boile James, engineer, Bessemer villa, Devonshire road
 Bond Harry L.B.C.P. & L.R.O.S. Edin., L.F.P.S. Glas. surgeon, 84 Lapstone road
 Bowness John, boot maker, 17 & 19 Newton street
 Bowness Joseph, boot maker, 73 Queen street
 Bowness Philip, insurance agent, 3 Egernont street
 Bradley Richard George W. builder, contractor & joinery manufacturer, Salthouse road & Castle view
 Bradley William, builder & joiner & house decorator, St. George's road
 Bradley's, outfitters, 31 Wellington street
 Brady Eliza J. (Mrs.), Rising Sun P.H. Main st. Haverigg
 Breakwell Henry, hosier, Main street, Haverigg
 Brookbank George Henry, music seller & teacher of music, dealer in pianofortes, organs, violins & all kinds of music, 38 Newton street
 Brocklebank John, boot maker & clogger, 47 Albert st
 Brown Ann (Mrs.), shopkeeper, Main street
 Brown Edward, sec. of Millom Cricket Club, Market sq
 Burnett Sydney Herbert, Ship inn, Holborn hill
 Burns Thomas, hair dresser, 15 Newton street
 Bushby Thomas (Mrs.), draper, 43a, Newton street
 Butler Thomas & Son, solicitors & commissioners for oaths & perpetual commissioners, Duke street; & Broughton-in-Furness
 Butler Wilson, solicitor, Duke street; & Broughton-in-Furness, Lancs
 Cambridge Temperance & Commercial Hotel (Mrs. Mary Ann Bell, proprietress), Cambridge street
 Cartwright William Timothy Hingley, saddler, 7 St. George's terrace
 Central Hall (Thos. W. Robinson, propr.), Holborn hill
 Chapman J. P. dentist, 44 Lapstone road (attends fortnightly)
 Clark Richard, shopkeeper, 106 Wellington street
 Cleasby James, farmer, Bankhead, Haverigg
 Cole Thomas, shopkeeper, 60 Queen street
 Cook Daniel & Co. printers, Crown street
 Connelly Mary Ann (Mrs.), laundry, 8 Lonsdale road
 Oram Sarah (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 47 Queen street
 County Hall (G. Mudge, manager), Market square
 Coward Alfred, auctioneer, Lonsdale ho se
 Craghill John, shopkeeper, Main street, Haverigg
 Crooke Walter, consulting engineer, Church gate
 Crossman R. shopkeeper, 38 Lord street
 Crump William, draper, St. George's road
 Danson Annie J. (Miss), confectioner, 18 St. George's ter
 Darvell William, boot maker, Market square
 Davey Annie (Miss), shopkeeper, 1 Surrey street

Dawson James, joiner, Main street, Haverigg
 Deacon Harry, Temperance hotel, & confectioner, 50 Lapstone road
 Deacon's Temperance & Commercial Hotel (Harry Deacon, proprietor), Lapstone road
 Dennis Susan (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 3 Queen street
 Dickinson Matthew J. A. solicitor, & sec. to Millom Auction Mart Co. Limited, 9 St. George's terrace
 Dickinson Percy Charles, printer, proprietor & publisher of the "Millom Weekly Gazette," Holborn hill
 Dixon Brothers, ironmongers & house furnisbers, Lapstone road
 Dixon Elizabeth (Miss), fancy dealer, Holborn hill
 Dixon Frederick Spalton, chemist & druggist; physicians' prescriptions dispensed with greatest accuracy; purest drugs used, Central pharmacy
 Dixon Robert, machinist & smith, Holborn hill
 Dobson William Henry, draper, 20 Wellington street
 Docker Anthony, fruiterer, 64 Queen street
 Docker Robert F. fishmonger & fruiterer, 60 & 62 Wellington street
 Douglas William, house decorator, plumber & electrical engineer, 53 Wellington street
 Dove Charles William, Station hotel, Station road
 Dowbiggin William, farmer, New hall
 Dowell Tom, watch maker, 36 Lapstone road
 Duddon Shipbuilding Co. (Hugh Jones, manager), ship builders, Duddon
 Duff James, mineral water manufacturer & ale bottler, 127 Holborn hill
 Dunn William Allison M.R.C.S. Eng., L.S.A. Lond. surgeon, 78 Lapstone road
 Edmondson Hugh, master mariner, 33 Devonshire road
 Elias Elizabeth (Mrs.), clothier, 64 & 66 Wellington street & pawnbroker, 14 & 16 King street
 Evan Thomas, shopkeeper, Main street, Haverigg
 Farrington John, news agent, Post office, Holborn hill
 Fawcett James, beer retailer, 66 Lord street
 Fawcett Jane (Mrs.), Royal P.H. Queen street
 Fawcett Marmaduke, mineral water mfr. 127 Holborn hl
 Fearon Henry, farmer, Moor farm
 Fell Fred, butcher, 20 Queen street
 Fell Henry, hair dresser, 70 Wellington street
 Fell James, shopkeeper, 26 Queen street
 Floyd John, grocer & provision & hardware goods dealer, Main street; Holborn hill; 46, 48, 50 & 52 Wellington street & Nelson street; & at Main street, Haverigg
 Flynn David, shopkeeper, 15 Wellington street
 Forayth Thomas William, nurseryman & seedsman, 30 Lapstone road
 Fox Henry Frankland, registrar of births & deaths, relieving & vaccination officer & collector to the guardians for the sub-district of Bootle, Duke street
 Fox Thos. John Corder, draper & grocer, Main st. Haverigg
 Gardener B. baby linen warehouse, 44 Queen street
 Gendle Ellen (Miss), milliner, 8 Wellington street
 Glaister Robert William M.R.C.V.S. veterinary surgeon, 8 Horn hill
 Grafton John, insurance agent, 23 Lincoln street
 Greensmith Henry, grocer, 25 Borwick rails
 Greenwood & Harris, bakers & confs. 35 Lapstone road
 Gregson Jane Ann (Miss), baker, Holborn hill
 Gregson Peter, tailor & outfitter, 13 St. George's ter
 Griffin Edwin, draper, The Exchange, Market square
 Hackett Joseph William, Ship P.H. Albert street
 Hall J.T. pianoforte & musical instrument dlr. Market sq
 Hall James Ralph, solicitor, 37 Wellington street
 Hall William, watch maker, 12 Wellington street
 Hallett Lillie (Mrs.), servants' registry, 49 Wellington st
 Hancock Robert, agent for Singer's, 11 Newton street
 Hargreaves James, photographer, Lapstone road
 Harker John, farmer, Salthouse
 Harling Thomas, grocer, 112 & 114 Market street
 Hart John, shopkeeper, 46 Newton street
 Haverigg Free Reading Room (Thomas Evans, caretaker), Main street, Haverigg
 Haynes Charles Allen, surveyor & sanitary inspector to the Urban District Council & sec. to Millom Masonic Building Co. Limited, Kingsland road
 Hill George, stone mason, 13 Horn hill
 Hockaday William H. baker, 60 Newton street

MILLOM

- Hodbarrow Mining Co. Lim. (Cedric Vaughan & William Barratt, managing directors; Robert Johnson, sec.),
Hodbarrow Iron Ore Mines, Hodbarrow
Hodson Thomas Henry, farmer, Salthouse
Hollywell Joseph, farmer, Redbrow farm, Haverigg
Holman Henry, dairy, 68 Lapstone road
Holmes M. A. pawnbroker, 23 Queen street
Holmes Thomas, house furnisher, 24 Wellington street
Horrell Elizabeth Jane (Mrs.), boot warehouse, 36 Newton st
Howarth James Edward, collector to the Urban District Council, Bay view
Howdan James, shopkeeper, 92 Newton street
Howson Robert F. insurance agent, 15 Crown street
Hoyle A. F. & Co. outfitters, 75 Queen street
Huey John Moxinette M.B., Ch.B Glas., L.R.C.S. & P. Edin., L.F.P.S.Glas. surgeon, Old Bank house
Huggins F. J. (Mrs.), milliner, 33 Newton street
Hughes George H. grocer, 63 Queen street
Hingworth John William, stationer, 15 St. George's terrace & Lapstone road
Jackson Robert, Harbour P.H. Haverigg
Jaffery Nicholas, shopkeeper, Haverigg
Johnson John, shopkeeper, 22 Newton street
Johnson Percy L. fishmonger, 49 Wellington street
Jones Evans, pilot, 23 Muirgate road
Jones Price, butcher, Holborn hill
Jones Color-Serpt. William John, drill instructor to the Millom Detachment of the 1st Vol. Batt. King's Own (Royal Lancaster Regiment), 9 Cambridge road
King James, shopkeeper, Borwick rails
Kitchen C. (Mrs.), tobacconist, 17 Wellington street
Kitchen Henry, butcher, Queen street
Knipe Edward Tyson, 115 Holborn hill
Knipe William, boot maker, Holborn hill
Lamb Samuel George, photographer, 57 Wellington st
Lancaster Banking Co. Lim. (branch) (Charles Alfred Oglethorpe, manager), Market square; London agents, Barclay & Co. Limited, Lombard street E C
Lawrence William Thomas, solicitor, commissioner for cats, deputy coroner for lordship of Millom, clerk to the Urban District Council, gas & water works & Millom Joint Education Committee, Market square
Leads Boot Manufacturing Co. Wellington street
Long Jane (Mrs.), apartments, 22 Duke street
Long Rowland, shopkeeper, 28 Lonsdale road
McArthur Alexander, Devonshire P.H. Devonshire road
McKay James, president of Millom Liberal & Radical Club, Millom road
McNally Bernard, marine store dealer, Queen street
McNally Michael, beer retailer, 149 Wellington street
McNally Michael, shopkeeper, 13 Newton street
Mackereth David, joiner, 88 Market street
Mackereth James, quarry owner, Holborn hill
Mackereth Mary (Mrs.), Plough inn, Holborn hill
Magor John, tinsmith, Main street, Haverigg
Maguire John, grocer, St. George's road
Mandall William, painter & plumber, 54 Queen street
Mansfield G. (Miss), music teacher, Bay view
Marshall William, shopkeeper, Main street, Haverigg
Martin Elizabeth (Mrs.), dress maker, St. George's road
Mason Rachel (Mrs.), confectioner, 25 Queen street
Mason Thomas, grocer, 50 & 52 Queen street
Matthews Sydney, boot repairer, 49 Queen street
Mawson Isaac, farmer, Town head, Haverigg
Middleton Thomas, apartments, 25 Muirgate road
Miles William B. painter, 21 Lancashire road
Miller William, school attendance officer, Cambridge st
Millom & Askam (The) Hematite Iron Co. Limited (George J. Mair, manager; John Graham, sec.), makers of Hematite pig iron for the Bessemer & Martin-Siemens' process; blast furnace works, Millom & Askam; chief office, Millom
Millom Auction Mart Co. Limited (M. J. A. Dickinson, sec.), 9 St. George's terrace
Millom Castle Hotel (Thomas W. Robinson, proprietor), Holborn hill
Millom Conservative Club (The) (E. Tyacke, sec.; Wm. Walls, treasurer), Lapstone road
Millom Co-operative Society Limited (James J. Cain, sec. & general manager), Wellington street, Albert street & Holborn hill; & at Main street, Haverigg
Millom Cricket Club (Edward Brown, sec.), Market sq
Millom Free Public Library (Alfred James Hutchinson, librarian)
Millom Liberal Radical Club (A. F. Hoyle, president; J. McKay, sec. & Thomas J. Richards, treas.), Crown st
Millom Masonic Building Co. Limited (Charles H. Haynes, sec.), Cambridge road
Millom News (William Atkinson, publisher; published Saturday; printed at Barrow), Market square
Millom Northern Union Football Club (E. Tyacke, sec.); head quarters, Millom Castle hotel
Millom Tradesmen's Association (The) (John Mills, president; William Lewthwaite, sec & treasurer), Market sq
Millom Volunteer Fire Brigade (William B. Miles, captain), Market hall
Millom Weekly Gazette (Percy Charles Dickinson, printer, proprietor & publisher; published Friday), Holborn hill
Mills John & Son, grocers & ironmongers, Market square
Mills John, president of the Millom Tradesmen's Association, Longfield house
Moore Henry, tailor & woollen draper, Market square
Moore Robert, wine & beer retailer, School terrace
Nankwell Samuel, confectioner, 53 Wellington street
National (The) Tea Co. (Joseph M. Parkinson, manager), 32 Lapstone road
Newby Isaac, boot maker, Wellington street
Newby John, farmer, Town end, Haverigg
Newby Richard, farmer, Lowscals
Newby Robert, Queens P.H. 123 Holborn hill
Newby Thinar (Mrs.), dress maker, 34 Duke street
Newton John, shopkeeper, 111 Holborn hill
Nicholas James, shopkeeper, 105 Albert street
Norman F. C. hair dresser & tobacconist, Market square
Nute William, baker, 35 Queen street
Oglethorpe Charles Alfred, manager of the Lancaster Bank & treasurer to the Urban District Council, Market square
Ormandy John, manager of **Bank of Liverpool Limited**, St. George's road
Park Thomas, farmer, Cross house
Parrott Thomas, boot & clog maker, Pool side, Haverigg
Pearce William, draper, 37 Newton street
Pellymounter Emma (Miss), dress maker, 3 Newton st
Phillips William, greengrocer, 58 Newton street
Postlethwaite William, ship broker, Market square
Pryor Georgina (Mrs.), confectioner & toy dealer, 21 Wellington street
Pncey John Henry, apartments, 130 Albert street
Ranger Alfred, tobacconist, 41 Newton street
Rattalluk Christopher, fried fish dealer, 48 Queen street
Reid Brothers, grocers, 69 Queen street
Reid Isabel, grocer, 86 Newton street
Richards Thomas J. draper & outfitter, 16 St. George's terrace
Richards Thomas J. treasurer of Millom Liberal Radical Club, 16 St. George's terrace
Richardson William, joiner, 58 Lapstone road
Rigg Elizabeth (Mrs.), beer retailer, 150 Wellington st
Riley David Sorrell, boot & clog maker, 78 Holborn hill
Riley Henry, farmer, Oxenbaws
Roach James (Mrs.), shopkeeper, Main street, Haverigg
Roberts Ernest, insurance agent, 63 Market street
Roberts John Lyddon, pharmaceutical chemist, Market sq
Robinson R. beer retailer, Rollington road
Robinson Thomas W. Millom Castle hotel, Holborn hill
Rodgers William J. agent for the Cumberland Co-operative Building Society, 137 Newton street
Rome Thomas, tobacconist, 51 Queen street
Rushby Mary (Mrs.), draper, 22 Wellington street
Russell Joseph, insurance agent, 29 Devonshire road
Salter George, insurance agent, 43 Lonsdale road
Scales Mary (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 6 Newton street
Schieffler Frederick, butcher, see Stoll & Schieffler
Shackley Anthony, clock maker, 10 Wellington street
Shardlow Harry D. head master Lapstone Road Council school, Hazelwood, Holborn hill
Sheldon George E. auctioneer & glass & china merchant, 59 & 61 Queen street
Shelton John, confectioner, Holborn hill
Shepherd Anthony, bus propr. & butcher, Main st. Haverigg
Sheward Joseph, watch maker & tobacconist, 11 & 12 St. George's terrace
Short John, chemist, 35 Newton street
Shuttleworth John, butcher, 9 King street
Singleton Jacob, grocer & beer retailer, & agent for W. & A. Gilbey Limited, wine & spirit merchants, Liverpool house, Holborn hill
Skeate Japh. Harris, stationer & bookseller, 27 Wellington st
Slater Seth, tailor, & post office, St. George's terrace
Smart James, baker, 93 Holborn hill
Sobey Brothers, grocers, Main street, Haverigg
Speeding Charles, confectioner, Holborn hill
Spry George, grocer, 28 Wellington street
Spry Moses S. grocer, 43 Wellington street
Station Family & Commercial Hotel (Charles William Dove), Station road
Stead & Simpson Lim. boot makers, 29 Wellington st
Stephens Richard, greengrocer, 47 Wellington street
Stevens Ellen (Mrs.), matron of the Hodbarrow hospital

MILLOM

KELLY 1906 MILLOM / RURAL by 7

212 MILLOM.

CUMBERLAND.

[KELLY'S

Stoddart John William, boot maker, 34 Lapstone road
 Stoll & Schiefler, butchers, 65 Queen street
 Stoney Percy Butler L.R.C.P. Edin., M.R.C.S. Eng. surgeon, coroner for the lordship of Millom, certifying factory surgeon, medical officer & public vaccinator for Millom district, Bootle union, & medical officer of health to the Urban District Council, Holborn hill
 Stranix G. Elish. (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 31 Lonsdale road
 Strike Peter, hair dresser, Haverigg
 Taylor Arnold James, painter, 1 Lancaster road
 Teasdale Edward, grocer, Holborn hill
 Thompson Geo. Wm. gasfitter & painter, 48 Newton st
 Thompson Sarah Jane (Mrs.), beer retlr. 101 Holborn hill
 Thompson William Henry, butcher, 50 Newton street
 Thelfall William H. baker, 25 Newton street
 Todd William, joiner, 42 Horn hill
 Tognarelli Brothers, shopkeepers, 58 Queen street
 Troughton John, butcher, 1 Newton street
 Tyacke E. sec. Millom Conservative club & Millom Northern Football club, Duke street
 Tyson Henry, beer retailer, 81 Holborn hill
 Tyson James, butcher, 45 Wellington street
 Tyson William, butcher, 59 Wellington street
 Tyson William, stationer, 71 Queen street
 Volunteer Battalion (1st King's Own Royal Lancaster Regiment) (Millom detachment; C. G. Bradley, commanding; Sergt. W. John Jones, drill instructor), Drill hall, Holborn hill
 Walker Mary Jane (Miss), shopkeeper, 127 Newton st
 Walmsley Christphr. grocer & prov. dlr. Lapstone road

Walls William, treasurer to the Millom Conservative club, Butler street
 Walter Albort, Star P.H. Haverigg
 Ward Charles, stationer, Lapstone road
 Warnock William John, stationer, 68 Wellington street
 Warwick Hugh Fleming M.B., Ch.B. Glas., L.R.C.S. Edin., L.R.C.P. Edin., L.F.P. & S. Glas. surgeon, & surgeon to the Hodbarrow Mining Co. Limited, Old Bank house
 Watson John, confectioner, 35 Wellington street
 Watson William, farmer, The Castle farm
 Waye James, butcher & grocer, 27 & 33 Queen street
 Webb Henry, boot maker, 33 Wellington street
 Weeks Fanny (Mrs.), dress maker, 34 Market street
 West County Family & Commercial Hotel (Robt. Burton, manager); close to the station, an ordinary daily, billiards, boots; attend all trains, Market square
 White Henry & Son, hosier, Berlin house, Wellington st
 White Michael, shopkeeper, 35 Lord street
 Williams David E. insurance agent, 7 Katherine street
 Wilson Geo. Wm. stone mason, Bankfield rd. Haverigg
 Wilson Harry, draper, 39 Newton street
 Wilson John, farmer, Haverigg
 Wilson Jonathan, butcher, Holborn hill
 Wilson Robinson, shopkeeper, 3 Newton street
 Withington S. & Co. tailors, 8 St. George's terrace
 Yarr Wm. Jn. brass & iron founder, Low Millom foundry
 York City & County Banking Co. Lim. (branch) (W. T. Lawrence, manager), Market square; draw on Lloyds Bank Limited, London E C
 Young James, greengrocer, 36 Queen street
 Youren John & Son, bill posters, 3 Horn hill

MILLOM

MILLOM RURAL, under the provisions of the "Local Government Act, 1894," was formed out of the ancient parish of Millom, which has been divided into two townships, Millom and Millom Rural, the former comprising the area of the Millom Urban District; the latter, on the west bank of the river Duddon, is 2½ miles from Green Road station, on the Furness railway, 5 south from Broughton (Lancs.), 8 south-east from Bootle, 13 south-east from Raven-glass, and 31 south-east from Whitehaven, in the Western division of the county, ward of Allerdale-above-Derwent, Bootle union and petty sessional division, county court district of Whitehaven, rural deanery of Gosforth, archdeaconry of Furness and diocese of Carlisle. On Duddon sands is a creek or harbour. The parish church of Millom (Holy Trinity) is an ancient edifice of stone in the Early Norman and Decorated styles, and consists of chancel, nave of four bays, south aisle, and a bell-gable with one bell: the aisle retains a piscina, and has a singular window of five lights, which, from its shape, has been called the "fish window;" most of the windows, however, are Decorated insertions; the nave arcade is Norman, but has pointed arches: the font is octagonal, and its sides are relieved by carved quatrefoils, and a shield with the arms of Huddleston; the rood-loft, extant in 1633, has now disappeared, but there is a western gallery, in which stands the organ: in the aisle is an altar-tomb of elaborate workmanship, with recumbent effigies, representing one of the Huddlestons and his wife; the sides of the tombs are adorned with tracery and figures of angels holding shields; near this stands another altar-tomb bearing a recumbent male effigy of wood, much mutilated; above these tombs is a mural tablet to Joseph Huddleston esq. ob. 10 Sept. 1700; to Bridget (Huddleston), his wife, ob. 17 March, 1714, and to a son who died young in 1682: there is also a monument to Sir Barrington Huddleston, ob. 13 Sept. 1720, and others to William Wells, vicar, ob. 4 Jan. 1698; John Smith, vicar, d. 30 Nov. 1796, and John Bolton, vicar, d. 5 Nov. 1820; in the church are brasses to John Latius esq. J.P. of Beck, d. 16 Oct. 1702, and his wives, Catherine (Orfeur) and Agnes (Huddleston), and to Dorothy (Musgrave), wife of William Askew, gentleman, d. 22 April, 1705: the church has been restored since 1873 at a cost of £220, and affords 360 sittings. In the churchyard stands a massive stone cross, the shaft of which is adorned with four shields. The registers date from the year 1598, but are defective in a number of years; many pages of churchwardens' accounts are bound up with them. The living is a vicarage, average net yearly value £269, in the gift of the Bishop of Carlisle, and held since 1865 by the Rev. John Irving M.A. of Queen's College, Oxford, hon. canon of Carlisle and surrogate. The chapel of ease at the Hill was erected in 1875, at a cost of £575, and will seat about 100 persons. There is also a Wesleyan chapel, built in 1875. Charities:—Atkinson's charity of £1,222 in Consols produces about £27 yearly, of which £34 is assigned to educational purposes, in the proportion of

1s. 3d. to the school at Thwaites and 1s. 3d. to the school at Millom Rural, and 1s. 3d. to the schools at Millom, and the remainder, about £2 12s. is distributed to the poor in bread; the stock is held by official trustees. Millom Castle, the ruins of which stand on a slight eminence about half a mile from the village, was held soon after the Conquest by the Boyviles, from whom it passed to Sir John de Huddleston, kt. by his marriage with Joan, daughter and heiress of Adam Boyvile, or de Millom. In 9 Edward III. (1335) a licence to crenellate the mansion was granted to John de Huddleston, and it continued in this family until in the 18th century, by the marriage of Elizabeth, eldest daughter and co-heiress of William Huddleston esq. with Sir Hedworth Williamson bart. the property was transferred, and sold by him in 1774 to Sir James Lowther bart. and it is now the property of the Earl of Lonsdale. The castle was crenellated by John de Huddleston, 9 Edward III. (1334-5) by royal licence, but the great tower or keep, 50 feet square, has been despoiled of its battlements, and now serves as a farm dwelling; within it is a fine carved staircase, and in the court-leet room, over the fireplace, are the arms of Huddleston boldly carved, and the motto, "Soli Deo Honor et Gloria." On the outside a lofty flight of steps leads up to the principal entrance; the castle, though not extensive, was a place of some strength, and portions of the walls, now overgrown with ivy, are seven feet thick. It was once surrounded by a fine park, which as late as 1774 was well stocked with deer, but it was disparked in 1802 by James, 1st Earl of Lonsdale of the first creation, and over 200 deer were then killed and sold in Ulverston. The seigniorship of Millom was anciently very extensive, and contained the parishes of Bootle, Corney, Millom, Waberthwaite, Whicham and Whitbeck, extending 13 miles in length and about 8 in breadth. In these six parishes the lords of Millom possessed exclusive privileges and jurisdiction, including the jura regalia, or power of life and death, and in a field close to the railway, and half a mile south of the railway, now called "Gallows field," stands a stone set up about 1860 with the following inscription:—

"On this spot stood n Gallows, the ancient Lords of Millom having exercised Jura Regalia within their Seigniorship."

The mountain called "Black Combe," lying between Millom and Bootle, and about 4 miles from the shore, rises thence in ridged slopes to a height of about 1,970 feet, and affords a splendid panoramic view, sometimes including the peak of Snowdon and the Irish coast. Various relics have been found at Lowcales, and in 1824 an ancient British battle axe, 13½ inches in length, was discovered here. In 1842 Mr. George Hudson, while at plough at Beck Hall Farm, turned up two sepulchral urns, containing the remains of some human skull bones resting upon the ashes by which they were consumed, the teeth of which were quite perfect; both vessels were handsomely ornamented, and formed of

MILLOM RURAL KELLY 1906 1 of 2